
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE AGENDA 
Friday, June 19, 2020 – 10:00 a.m. – Zoom Conference 

Join Zoom Meeting  
https://zoom.us/j/91077552946 

Meeting ID: 910 7755 2946  
One tap mobile: +12532158782,,91077552946# US (Tacoma) 

Dial by your location  
+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

888 475 4499 US Toll-free
Meeting ID: 910 7755 2946  

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/ad6LmfTjTT 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call 
2. Approve Agenda and March 20, 2020 EC Meeting Minutes 3 
3. Treasury Related Reports (Gina) 

a. Treasurer’s Report
b. Amazon Smiles
c. World Points Update

8 
33 
34 

4. Old Business 
5. New Business 

a. Audit Committee Job Description Amendment (Gina) 40 
6. Committee Business/Reports 

a. Audit (Gina)
b. Awards (Paula)
c. Budget (Susan)
d. Bylaws (Melody)
e. Clerk’s Handbook Update (Debbie J.)
f. Conference Planning (Paula) – Action Requested 

i. Postpone 2021 Conference Registration Increase of
$25 to 2022

g. Education (Don) – Action Requested 
i. Offer for free “fun morale-booster message from

Steven Iwerson; offer virtual closing session during
2021 conference

h. Fundraising (Deb E.)
i. Historical (Terri)
j. Legislative (Debby)

42 

43 

44 

46 

48 
49 
50 

1

https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__zoom.us_j_91077552946&d=DwMF-g&c=qALlE42lHtU71GFDlXZyeQ&r=5wFlDtliPCiCJZg1jR_tYXn5LqmCNGcFSmu1CsmawMs&m=QrnueEopUv4niDe7ixx2epMfK6Izr-ML-ABiHgzKN_I&s=sc3bujLVmjUUskqt-A-A3EfZ8Ok2GW_Fadjcc2HKEyE&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__zoom.us_u_ad6LmfTjTT&d=DwMF-g&c=qALlE42lHtU71GFDlXZyeQ&r=5wFlDtliPCiCJZg1jR_tYXn5LqmCNGcFSmu1CsmawMs&m=QrnueEopUv4niDe7ixx2epMfK6Izr-ML-ABiHgzKN_I&s=QOECScmqwAbml5zMgbHehYfPRjljBsuzFQIim1EWMWU&e=


k. Membership (Liz) – Action Requested 
i. Election Procedure Amendments

l. Newsletter (Shawn) – No Report 
m. Scholarship (Lisa) – Action Requested 

i. Honor scholarships awarded in 2020 for the
Annual Conference in 2021

n. Webmaster
o. Education Coordinator

51 

59 

7. Other Business 
a. E-Mail Ratifications

i. Small Cities Scholarship Line item additional funds
for dues

ii. Extend dues scholarship deadline to May 15, 2020
iii. Authorize 2021 IIMC Conference costs for Debbie

Jermann
iv. Cancellation of 2020 NW Clerks Institute costs in

the amount of $8,426.76
v. Award of seven (7) dues scholarships

vi. Extension of deadline to pay dues without late fee
to June 30, 2020

64 

65 
66 

67 

68 
69 

8. Good of the Order 
9. Adjournment 

2



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
Friday, March 20, 2020 

Virtual Meeting via ZOOM 

Page 1 of 5 03.20.2020 WMCA EC Minutes 

OATHS OF OFFICE: 

Due to new coronavirus crisis that shut down Washington State in early March 2020 and 

delayed the 2020 WMCA Annual Conference, 2019-2020 President Swisher installed the 2020-

2021 WMCA Officers virtually prior to the start of the Executive Committee meeting.  The 

officers included new President Debbie Jermann, President-Elect Susan Duncan, Vice President 

Shawn Campbell, Secretary Debby Barham and Board members Melody Valiant and Terri 

Wright. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

President Jermann called the virtual meeting (via Zoom) to order at 10:33 a.m. 

WMCA Executive Committee members present included President Debbie Jermann, President-
Elect Susan Duncan, Vice President Shawn Campbell, Secretary Debby Barham, Treasurer Gina 
Anderson, Board Members Don Ross, Lisa Neissl, Elizabeth Adkisson, Terri Wright, Melody 
Valiant, and Deb Estrada (arrived at 11:13 a.m.) and Immediate Past President (IPP) Paula 
Swisher. 

2. Approve Agenda and January 24, 2020 EC Meeting Minutes

President Jermann called for any corrections to the January 24, 2020 Executive Committee 
meeting minutes; none noted.   

Motion: Treasurer Anderson moved to approve the January 2020 minutes as presented and 
amend the agenda to include the topic of the Backup Treasurer. 

Second:  Board Member Neissl. 
Vote: Motion carried unanimously. 

3. Treasury’s Related Reports

Treasurer Report: Treasurer Anderson provided brief overview regarding the financial position, 
as well as the review of WMCA dues application form. The application form needs to be 
reviewed annually at the January Executive Committee meeting per the WMCA Bylaws.  

4. Old Business
There was no old business to discuss.

3



Page 2 of 5 03.20.2020 WMCA EC Minutes 

5. New Business 
 

a. Reappointment of Alice Atwood or Recruitment for the October 2020 to October 2022 
Term for Education Coordinator 

 
Motion: Vice President Campbell moved to reappoint Alice Atwood as the Education 

Coordinator from October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2022. 
Second: President-Elect Duncan. 
Vote: Motion carried unanimously. 
 

b. Rescheduling of 2020 WMCA Annual Conference 
 
Past President Swisher provided a report on the cancellation of the March 2020 WMCA 
Conference due to the COVID-19 crisis and Governor Inslee’s “Stay Safe – Stay Home” mandate 
shutting down all personal and professional gatherings. By waiting to cancel the Conference 
until after the closure of Washington State, WMCA saved thousands of dollars that would have 
been lost due to the cancelation of contracts.  The conference site has an opening in early 
August if the Executive Committee decides to move the conference to August. Ms. Swisher and 
the Conference Committee weighed the pros and cons and the best way to protect WMCA from 
a large financial hit. 
 
The Executive Committee discussion ensued regarding the options for the 2020 WMCA Annual 
Conference, as well as the 2020 Fall Academy and options for additional academies and/or 
Athenian Dialog during or before/after the Annual Conference. 
 
Deb Estrada joined the meeting at 11:13 a.m. 
 
Motion: Board Member Neissl moved to reschedule the 2020 WMCA Annual Conference from 

March 2020 to August 3-7, 2020, to the conference fees for those individuals that 
have already paid to the August Conference, giving the attendee the opportunity to 
transfer their registration to another attendee. The Conference Committee will send 
an update to the membership after the amended conference contract is executed. 

Second: Vice President Campbell. 
Vote: Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
Motion: Board Member Wright moved to add an Athenian Dialog during the August Annual 

conference (Wednesday or Thursday). 
Second: President-Elect Duncan. 
Vote: Motion failed unanimously. 
 

4



Page 3 of 5 03.20.2020 WMCA EC Minutes 

Motion: President-Elect Duncan moved to place the Athenian Dialog on Tuesday of the Annual 
conference and individuals an option to attend the one-day academy or the Athenian 
Dialog. 

Second:  Past President Swisher. 
Vote:  Motion failed unanimously. 
 

c. Membership Approval of 2020-2021 budget and proposed Bylaw amendment, using 
election software or WMCA Website 

 
Motion: Past President Swisher moved to have the 2020-2021 WMCA Budget approved by its 

membership through WMCA website. 
Second: Vice President Campbell. 
Vote: Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
6. Committee Business/Reports 

 
a. Audit Committee 

 
No discussion. 
 

b. Awards Committee  
 
No discussion. 
 

c. Budget Committee 
 
No discussion. 
 

d. Bylaws Committee 
 
No discussion. 
 

e. Conference Planning 
 
Past President Swisher moved to approve the use of an app for registering for meals 
online for the 2020 WMCA Conference. The suggestion was approved by consensus. 
 

f. Education  
 
No discussion. 
 

5



Page 4 of 5 03.20.2020 WMCA EC Minutes 

g. Fundraising Committee 
 
Board Member Estrada recommended that the Fundraising Committee offer the auction 
items online for some of the weekend packages. 
 

h. Historical Committee 
 
No discussion. 
 

i. Legislative Committee 
 
No discussion. 
 

j. Membership Committee.   
 
No discussion. 
 

k. Newsletter 
 
No discussion. 
 

l. Scholarship  
 
No discussion. 
 

m. Webmaster 
 
No discussion. 
 

n. Education Coordinator 
 
No discussion. 
 

7. Other Business 
 

a. 2020-2021 Executive Committee Meeting Schedule 
 
President Jermann provided an updated Executive Committee Meeting Schedule because of the 
statewide issues with the COVID-19 pandemic. 
 

6



Page 5 of 5 03.20.2020 WMCA EC Minutes 

b. E-Votes Ratifications 
 
The email votes conducted between January 28, 2020 and March 19, 2020 included: 

1. 01.28.20 E-VOTE Job Descriptions – President/Immediate Past President 
2. 02.04.20 E-VOTE Conference Scholarship Lodging Cost 

 
Motion: Past President Swisher moved to ratify emails as presented. 
Second: Vice President Campbell. 
Vote: Motion carried unanimously.  
 
8. Good of the Order  

 
a. Need for a Backup Treasurer 

 
Treasurer Anderson expressed concern that there is no one to back her up as Treasurer and is 
recommending another Executive Board member to act as the Backup Treasurer if she became 
unable to perform the duties of Treasurer. 
 
Motion: Treasurer Anderson moved to appoint Donald Ross as Backup Treasurer. 
Second: Board Member Neissl. 
Vote: Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Board Member Estrada recommended that the WMCA website post COVID-19 information as a 
way to assist all of the WMCA members.  This was approved by consensus and Ms. Estrada will 
work with the WMCA webmaster to set up and maintain a COVID-19 webpage. 
 
9. Adjournment 

 
There being no further business, President Jermann adjourned the meeting at p.m. 1:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Debby Barham 
WMCA Secretary 
 
 
Minutes approved at the WMCA Executive Committee Meeting on ______________, 2020. 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



WMCA Bank of America Credit Card Points Instructions/Quarterly Reporting

Name: Elizabeth Adkisson
Position: Membership Committee Chair
Period: March - May  2020

0.00
1st Month March 10, 2020 0.00
2nd Month April 10, 2020 381.96
3rd Month May 10, 2020 0.00

381.96
Date/Desc/Points Used

0.00
381.96

Subtotal Points Used
Balance of Points

On the bottom of your statement, there is a link to the website: 
www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints as well as a summary of the points activity.  Please submit a 
reconciliation of your redeemed points each quarter for the EC Meeting Packet.  Effective January 
23, 2015 all points reporting will be included in documents reviewed by the Audit Committee for 
accountability and transparency.  Points can be used for anything already in your budget (supplies, 
speaker gift cards, VIP gifts, etc).  EC approval will be required to spend points toward a WMCA 
auction item or an item not in the budget.

Beginning Points Balance

Subtotal Points Earned

Date/Desc/Points Earned

34

http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints
http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints


35



WMCA Bank of America Credit Card Points Instructions/Quarterly Reporting 

On the bottom of your statement, there is a link to the website: 
www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints as well as a summary of the points activity.  Please 
submit a reconciliation of your redeemed points each quarter for the EC Meeting Packet.  
Effective January 23, 2015 all points reporting will be included in documents reviewed by the 
Audit Committee for accountability and transparency.  Points can be used for anything already 
in your budget (supplies, speaker gift cards, VIP gifts, etc).  EC approval will be required to 
spend points toward a WMCA auction item or an item not in the budget. 

Name:    SUSAN DUNCAN 
Position: PRESIDENT ELECT 
Period:    May 10, 2020 – June 11, 2020 

Beginning Points Balance 
Date/Desc/Points Earned 

Subtotal Point Earned 
Date/Desc/Points Used 

Subtotal Point Used 0 
Balance of Points 0 

. 

36

http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints


WMCA Bank of America Credit Card Points Instructions/Quarterly Reporting 

On the bottom of your statement, there is a link to the website: 
www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints as well as a summary of the points activity.  Please 
submit a reconciliation of your redeemed points each quarter for the EC Meeting Packet.  
Effective January 23, 2015 all points reporting will be included in documents reviewed by the 
Audit Committee for accountability and transparency.  Points can be used for anything already 
in your budget (supplies, speaker gift cards, VIP gifts, etc).  EC approval will be required to 
spend points toward a WMCA auction item or an item not in the budget. 

Name:    DEBBIE JERMANN 
Position: PRESIDENT 
Period:    March 2020 through June 2020 

Beginning Points Balance 4728.93 
Date/Desc/Points Earned 147.28 

Subtotal Point Earned 4876.21 
Date/Desc/Points Used 

Subtotal Point Used 0 
Balance of Points 4876.21 

. 

37

http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints


WMCA Bank of America Credit Card Points Instructions/Quarterly Reporting 

On the bottom of your statement, there is a link to the website: 
www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints as well as a summary of the points activity.  Please 
submit a reconciliation of your redeemed points each quarter for the EC Meeting Packet.  
Effective January 23, 2015 all points reporting will be included in documents reviewed by the 
Audit Committee for accountability and transparency.  Points can be used for anything already 
in your budget (supplies, speaker gift cards, VIP gifts, etc).  EC approval will be required to 
spend points toward a WMCA auction item or an item not in the budget. 

Name:    PAULA SWISHER 
Position: PAST-PRESIDENT 
Period:    March 2020 thru June 2020 

Beginning Points Balance 2956.05 
Date/Desc/Points Earned 

March 2020 155.02 

Subtotal Point Earned 155.02 
Date/Desc/Points Used 

Subtotal Point Used 0 
Balance of Points 3111.07 

. 

38

http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints


WMCA Bank of America Credit Card Points Instructions/Quarterly Reporting 

On the bottom of your statement, there is a link to the website: 
www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints as well as a summary of the points activity.  Please 
submit a reconciliation of your redeemed points each quarter for the EC Meeting Packet.  
Effective January 23, 2015 all points reporting will be included in documents reviewed by the 
Audit Committee for accountability and transparency.  Points can be used for anything already 
in your budget (supplies, speaker gift cards, VIP gifts, etc).  EC approval will be required to 
spend points toward a WMCA auction item or an item not in the budget. 

Name:    JODI WYCOFF 
Position: CONFERENCE PLANNING CO-CHAIR 
Period:    March – May 2020 

Beginning Points Balance 1340.50 
Date/Desc/Points Earned 

March 2020 Conference Planning 1428.19 
April 2020 Conference Planning 735.22 

Subtotal Point Earned 2163.41 
Date/Desc/Points Used 

Subtotal Point Used 0 
Balance of Points 3503.91 

. 

39

http://www.bankofamerica.com/worldpoints


Audit Committee 

General Responsibilities: 

The Audit Committee reviews WMCA financial records to confirm that funds have been properly 
receipted and expended. Committee members are expected to travel to participate in the onsite 
audit. 

Organization and Tasks: 

1. The President of WMCA will appoint: a Committee Chair, a member of the Executive
Committee to act as a liaison and as many committee members as necessary to
accomplish the tasks of the Audit Committee.

2. Two audits of financial records and accounts of the Association are required per year, as
well as an annual audit of the records required of a non-profit corporation under the laws
of the State of Washington as may be revised from time to time (currently RCW 24.03.135).
Additional audits may be requested by the Executive Committee. The Treasurer shall be
in attendance during audits and present the financial records for the audit to Committee
members.
a. The first audit of the financial records and accounts shall cover the period of May

through December and be conducted as soon as practical after December 31.
The Audit Committee Chair shall submit an audit report for this period to the
WMCA President. The Audit Committee Chair shall also present an oral report to
the membership at the WMCA Annual Meeting after which a motion will be
required to accept the Audit Committee’s findings.

b. The second audit shall cover the period of January through April and be
conducted as soon as practical after April 30. When WMCA financial records are
being audited prior to being transferred to a new Treasurer, both outgoing and
incoming Treasurers should be present during the audit. The Audit Committee
Chair shall submit a written audit report to the WMCA President for review at the
June Executive Committee meeting after which a motion will be required to accept
the Audit Committee’s findings.

c. An annual audit of the Association’s corporate records shall also be conducted
as soon as practical after April 30. The Secretary of the Association or designee
shall transmit copies of the corporate records to the audit committee chair for the
audit. The results of this audit shall be reviewed and approved by the Executive
Committee at its June meeting, and reported on the WMCA website or another
WMCA general publication distributed or accessible to all members and may be
combined with the first annual report on the audit of financial records and
accounts.

3. The Audit Committee Chair will send a meeting agenda to the Treasurer prior to the audit
meeting, so the Treasurer can have all necessary documents available for review.
Committee members are expected to travel to participate in the onsite audit.  The
Committee will meet at the Treasurer’s City Hall or at a location suggested by the
Treasurer.

4. The Committee examines receipts, checks, bank statements, etc. to determine current
balances and to assess the overall state of WMCA financial records.

5. The President-Elect should include the committee’s recommendations in his/her budget,40



if appropriate. 

6. All committees, groups or individual members that are responsible for collecting monies
shall send an activity statement including the date, amount, name of payer and purpose
for the collection to the WMCA Treasurer upon transfer of monies.

7. At the President’s request the Committee Chair will submit a written report for inclusion in
the Executive Committee meeting packet.

8. The Committee Chair shall prepare certificates for all committee members, which show
the member’s name, the committee and the year (i.e. 2006-2007) for distribution to the
committee members at the Annual Conference.

9. All invoices for WMCA expenses shall be forwarded to the Executive Committee Liaison
for review and sign-off prior to being sent to the WMCA Treasurer.

41



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Kaylee Cody, Longview City Clerk  

COMMITTEE: Audit Committee 

DATE: 5/26/2020 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: Though the Audit Committee usually meets in May of each year to conduct 
an audit of the financial records for the period of January-April as part of first quarter reporting, due to 
COVID-19 related closures and travel restrictions, the Audit Committee meeting is currently postponed. 
My understanding is that government agencies may be able to reopen during Phase 3 of the state 
reopening plan. Cowlitz County, where the audit is to take place, is currently in Phase 2 of reopening. 
Once we reach Phase 3 and have a better understanding of the guidelines, I will confer with Treasurer 
Gina Anderson and the committee members to reschedule the meeting.    

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

$ $ 
$ $ 

Expenditures: Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$ $     
$ $     
$ $     

42



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Co-Chairs Jodee Schwinn/Melody Valiant 

COMMITTEE: Bylaws Committee 

DATE: 5/27/20 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES:    The Bylaws Committee currently has 11 members for this year.  The 
current 2020-2021 Bylaws Committee Roster is included with this 1st Quarter Report.  A copy of the 
Roster and this Report will also be sent to all Committee Members. 

Thank you. 

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: n/a 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: n/a 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

$ $ 
$ $ 

Expenditures: Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$ $     
$ $     
$ $     

43



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Keri MacDonald, Co-Chair; Jodi Wycoff, Co-Chair 

COMMITTEE: Conference Planning 

DATE: June 2, 2020 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: 

Unfortunately, due to the COVID-19 pandemic and the fact that Yakima County will likely not be in 
phase four by August, (Past) President Swisher's "Life's A B.E.A.C.H." conference has been cancelled. This 
is disappointing to say the least as we were looking forward to honoring Paula and her years of planning 
amazing conferences for so many past presidents. Now it is time to move on and we are excited to plan 
President Jermann's "Our Future's So Bright…We Need to Wear Shades!" conference. 

We are in the beginning stages of planning the 2021 Conference in Ocean Shores scheduled for March 
17-19, 2021 (Academy March 16). We will work w/ our EC liaison, Paula Swisher, to assist with the site
visit and menu planning (and let's face it, some of the decorations and fun stuff too!).

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

FISCAL IMPACT:  Conference Planning will view all aspects of the conference through the lens of being 
fiscally responsible. Some items purchased for the 2020 conference may be able to be used for future 
conferences. No funds have been spent so far for the 2021 conference. 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

$ $ 
$ $ 44



Expenditures: Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$ $     
$ $     
$ $     

45



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Heidi K. S. Napolitino, Town of Woodway and Tammy Stanger, City of Wenatchee 

COMMITTEE: Education Committee 

DATE: June 5, 2020 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: 

In this continually evolving good news/bad news world we are currently inhabiting, the Education 
committee is in pretty good shape. 

Tina Eggers, City of Issaquah, our former co-chair, had to step down due to her increased work load 
related to COVID-19. I am so happy to say that she will continue to be a committee member and we are 
glad to have her. Tammy Stanger, City of Wenatchee, stepped into the vacant co-chair role. Thank you, 
Tammy! 

We have begun the work of contacting speakers and moving them to the 2021 conference in Ocean 
Shores. Our Keynote/Breakout Session speaker, Steven Iwersen, and our Closing Session speaker, Frank 
Kitchen, are both available for next year's conference and have moved our deposits to 2021. 

Steven offered to do a free virtual session that would provide "a fun morale-booster message". This 
would be a live short-form (15-20 minutes) exclusive session to be offered to the membership in the 
next month or so as a way to offset the disappointment of not having our conference this year. If you're 
interested in offering this session to our members, we will work with Steven to set it up. 

Frank suggested options for ways to include members who may be unable to attend next year's 
conference: a recorded version of the closing session with or without a live q&a, or a self-guided 
learning experience in an app with the closing session content broken into four or five mini sessions. He 
could also do a live q&a a few weeks later for attendees and those who have done the self-guided 
learning. The session would recap the program and leave time for discussion/q&a. These options would 
be available for approximately $10-30/person.  

Considering the reduced travel/training budget for many entities, a virtual option seems like a great low-
cost way to include those members who are unable to attend in person. It would be wonderful to 
include other virtual options, if possible. 

We have asked Donald Ross, our EC liaison, for help updating the speaker contract. While we were 
updating the contracts with the August conference date, we realized that our contract is lacking basic 46



contract terms, like what to do in the event of a cancellation, when and how payment will be made, and 
more. It doesn't need to be complicated, but it certainly needs to be more robust to protect us and the 
speakers. 

Our work plan for the next few months includes: 
- Working with our EC liaison to update the speaker contract
- Completing contracts with our two main speakers
- Contacting the concurrent session speakers to find out if they will be available in the spring and
sending them new contracts
- Creating a new class schedule based on the speakers' schedules and our anticipated number of
attendees

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: Please consider the following recommendations and notify the Education 
Committee if you would like to proceed: 1. Offer our membership a free virtual session with Steven 
Iwersen this summer. 2. Add a virtual component with Frank Kitchen to the 2021 conference for 
members unable to attend the conference. 

Please confirm the budget for the Education Committee for the 2020-2021 year. 

ALTERNATIVES: n/a 

FISCAL IMPACT: see below 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

$ $ 
$ $ 

Expenditures:  Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$10 to $30 per attendee $ $     
$ $     
$ $     

47



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Deborah Estrada & Heidi Riojas, Co-Chairs 

COMMITTEE: Fundraising 

DATE: June 2, 2020 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: No significant activities to report at this time. 

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: 

ALTERNATIVES: 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

Product Sales $ $ 
Live & Silent Auction $ $ 

Expenditures: Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$ $     
$ $     
$ $     

48



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Gretchen Sagen and Terri Wright 

COMMITTEE: Historical Committee 

DATE: 05/21/2020 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: We lost quite a few members and up until a couple of weeks ago the 
committee was made up of the  co-chairs and our WMCA president. We welcomed two new members 
and hope to get more sign up at our annual conference in August. We will put our heads together and 
come up with something to attract more members. 

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: NA 

ALTERNATIVES: NA 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

$ $ 
$ $ 

Expenditures: Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$ $     
$ $     
$ $     

49



 First Quarter Report (June Mtg) 
 Second Quarter Report (Oct Mtg) 
 Third Quarter Report (Jan Mtg) 
 Year-End Report (Mar Mtg) 

TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM: Melissa McCain, City of Renton and Kay Kammer, City of Battle Ground 

COMMITTEE: Legislative 

DATE: May 26, 2020 

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES: The Legislative Committee Co-Chairs sent an email welcoming the 2020-21 
Committee Members.   

Co-Chair Melissa McCain exchanged communications with AWC Director of Government Relations 
Candice Brock on the status of the AWC Legislative Priorities Committee.  Ms. Brock stated AWC is in 
process of restructuring the committee by moving away from having all affiliate associations participate 
on the committee.  Ms. Brock said she would provide additional information once the restructure has 
been finalized. 

ACTION REQUESTED:   YES   NO 

RECOMMENDATION: N/A 

ALTERNATIVES: N/A 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

Revenues: Budgeted Amount Revenues Generated 

$ $ 
$ $ 

Expenditures: Budgeted Amount Amount encumbered & 
expended 

$ $     
$ $     
$ $     

50



TO: WMCA President and Executive Committee 

FROM:  Elizabeth M. Adkisson, Chair 
Darla Reese, Co-Chair 
Heidi Napolitino, Co-Chair, Elections 

DATE: June 3, 2020 

2020-21 MEMBERSHIP UPDATE: 

As of June 2019, we have a total of Two (2) new WMCA members: 

Jessica Clark City of Buckley Catherine Konzal City of Chewelah 

As of June 3, 2020, the Washington Municipal Clerks Association is comprised of 341 members: 
296 active members, 1 affiliate member, 3 associate members, 15 honorary members, and 
26 honorary retiree members.  

MEMBERSHIP COMMITTEE - SUB-COMMITTEES UPDATE 

The 2020-21 Membership Committee members have been confirmed and will be asked to 
volunteer to serve on at least one sub-committee; descriptions and members are as follows:  
• Welcoming Sub-Committee (Elizabeth) -- Welcome new members to WMCA and send a

Neighboring Clerks/Regional Groups Letter (templates prepared) (which is in addition to the
MC Chair sending out the official new member packet, welcome letter, noticing new
members in the newsletter, and facilitating the ‘new member spotlight’ section of the
newsletter). ALL members were requested to serve on this sub-committee and assigned ONE
month of the year to provide these letters to new members.

• Recruitment Sub-Committee (Darla) -- Recruit new members, research unrepresented
agencies in Washington, and reach out to those persons that are not yet members; this
year, the sub-committee will continue to focus on special purpose district clerk’s
recruitment; volunteers – pending.

• Elections Sub-Committee (Heidi) -- Facilitate general and special elections; Elections Officer
Heidi Napolitino (Woodway) and Elections Officer Assistant Peri Gallucci (Chelan).

• Partnership Program Sub-Committee (Darla) -- Promote and facilitate the Partnership
Program; volunteers – pending. 

51



• Fall Mini-Conference Membership Events Sub-Committee (Elizabeth) -- Plan/facilitate the
proposed fall ‘mini-conference’ events for the entire membership (Thursday evening) and
new attendees (mini conference buddies, etc.); volunteers – pending.

• Annual Conference First Time Attendees Events (Elizabeth/Darla) - ALL committee members
(unless otherwise arranged with the Chair) will assist with the planning/preparation of
Annual Conference First Time Attendees Events items; and to attend and assist with these
items at the conference.

Updates on sub-committee activities will be included in the quarterly reports to the President 
and Executive Committee. Any additional feedback/questions in this regard from the Executive 
Committee is welcome! 

BYLAWS & ELECTIONS PROCEDURES – POTENTIAL AMENDMENTS 

At the January 24, 2020, WMCA Executive Committee Meeting, members discussed the 2020 
General Elections process and potential amendments to those procedures and related bylaws 
regarding:  

• Adding a requirement to include a letter of support from the candidate’s direct
supervisors as well as the candidate’s mayor, city manager or city/county administrator,
or CEO, unless they are one and the same. Guidelines -- Can be one letter with both
names and signatures of the approving individuals. (This would require an amendment
to both WMCA Bylaws and Election Procedures – see attachments 1 & 2.)

• Provide the ability/direction for the Elections Officer to review each candidate packet as
received, notify candidates of any discrepancies from the requirements, and request any
changes to be submitted prior to the deadline for submissions. Question - What about
after the deadline? (Potential amendment to WMCA Bylaws& Elections Procedures – see
attachments 1 & 2.)

This is time set aside for the EC to review current Elections Procedures/Bylaws for any 
additional potential amendments. These requests will then be sent to the Bylaws Committee 
and Elections Officer and Elections Officer Assistant for review and to draft proposed 
amendments for the EC to consider/take action on at the October Meeting; and refer to the 
Annual Business Meeting in March 2021 (for Bylaws amendments). 

ACTION REQUESTED:     YES         NO 
RECOMMENDATION: N/A 
ALTERNATIVES: N/A 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
ATTACHMENTS: 1. Bylaws Excerpt; 2. Elections Procedures 

52



Exhibit A 
Elections Procedures 

(As required by the WMCA Bylaws, Article V – Elections to and Nominations for Office) 
 

A. Policy Statement 
 

Elections for the member-elected WMCA Executive Committee shall be administered in such a 
manner as to ensure openness, fairness and to encourage the broadest possible participation by 
active members. 

 
B. Definitions 

 
1. General Election:  Annual election to fill vacant positions of the WMCA Executive 

Committee occurring from the expiration of office terms; regularly scheduled for 
February of the initiating term year. 

 
2. Special Election:  An election called to fill a position which has become vacant between 

general elections. 
 
C. Nomination Procedures 
 

1. The Elections Officer shall confirm the positions open for election with the President.   
 
2. The Elections Officer shall place a Call for Candidates, including requirements for the 

Candidate Packet (see Section E), in the October, November and December editions of 
the WMCA Newsletter for the general election; and the next available edition of the 
WMCA Newsletter for special elections.  The Elections Officer will also work with the 
Webmaster to notify the membership of the Call for Candidates. 

 
3. Complete Candidate Packets must be received by the Elections Officer by December 31 

for general elections; and by a day specified prior to the opening of special elections.   
 
4. In the event that there are open positions for election for which no candidate has filed by 

the deadlines stated above in Section C(3), the Elections Officer shall immediately notify 
the President.  The President shall appoint an ad hoc Nominations Committee pursuant 
to Article V, Section 2 of the WMCA By-laws. 

 
5. The Elections Officer shall prepare a slate of candidates, and forward the candidate 

packets received to the Elections Auditor to ensure a “check and balance” approach to 
the Elections process. 

 
6. After review by the Elections Auditor, the Elections Officer will submit the slate of 

proposed candidates to the Membership Committee Chair who will distribute the slate to 
the Executive Committee via e-mail once the Call for Candidates has closed. 
Only those candidates who meet the requirements of Article V, Section 4 of the WMCA 
Bylaws, shall be submitted.   

 

53



7. Once the Executive Committee has been notified of the slate of proposed candidates, the
Elections Officer will notify the Webmaster to post the candidate statements and photos
to the WMCA website.

D. Election Administration Procedures

1. The Elections Officer obtains a list of active members in good standing as of the date of
the general election or the special election from the Treasurer.  The Elections Officer also
obtains a list of active members shown in the WMCA website from the Webmaster.

2. The Elections Officer then compares the lists from the Treasurer and the Webmaster to
create a master list that contains only Active Members, including their Member ID from
the WMCA website. Only active Members are allowed to vote and will need their Member 
ID in order to vote.

3. The Elections Officer prepares electronic voting software to include:

a. Candidate Statements and Photos: The Elections Officer will format each
submitted statement and photo in the electronic voting software.  Candidates will 
be listed in alphabetical order per each office being sought to avoid an
appearance of favoritism.

b. Electronic Voting Instructions: Shall contain at least the following:

If you are an active member of the Washington Municipals Clerks Association, you
are eligible to participate in elections.

To vote, complete the electronic ballot by checking the candidate of your choice,
or writing in the name of a candidate in the field provided. When finished, click on
the certification button and read the certification that states, “I certify that I am
an active member in good standing of the Washington Municipal Clerks
Association, and am eligible to vote in the current election.”

Enter your name, city, email address and date in the certification fields, and click
on the “Submit My Vote” button.

4. By the Friday before the first business day in February for general elections, and a date
agreed upon by the Executive Committee for special elections, the Elections Officer will
email ballot information, voting instructions, and the link to the electronic voting software 
(online) to each active member in good standing from the master list of Active Members
(see Section D(2) above), via the Webmaster.  The email shall contain the words “WMCA
Ballot Information - Time Sensitive” in the subject line of the email.
The ballot information shall contain only the items listed above in this Subsection.

5. Members receiving ballot information emails will access the ballot through the electronic
voting software and mark their ballots electronically.

54



6. Voting must be completed no later than 4:00 pm the third Friday in February for general
elections, and no later than 4:00 pm at the conclusion of three weeks from the opening
of special elections.  At that time the electronic voting mechanism will be disabled.
Each member is allowed one vote; duplicate voting will disqualify the member from
voting.  If electronic voting is not possible, paper ballots will be available by requesting
same in writing to the Elections Officer.

7. Write-in candidates will be allowed.  If a write-in candidate is elected to any position and
indicates a willingness to serve, the Elections Officer shall notify the candidate of the
requirements for a letter of support from that individual’s mayor, city manager,
city/county administrator or CEO within two weeks of the election results.  If such a letter
is not provided as required, the board or officer position shall be filled by the candidate
with the next highest votes counted.

8. In the event of a tie-vote, the winner shall be chosen by lot according to a procedure
determined by the Executive Committee.

9. On the next business day following the close of the election, the Elections Officer will run
the required report from the electronic voting software to create the list of members who 
voted and to tally the votes.

10. The Elections Officer will give the results of the election to the Elections Auditor, who will
provide an independent review of the process and results of the election.
The Elections Auditor will provide a written summary of the election results (including the
names and votes counts for all candidates for each position) to the Executive Committee,
the Elections Officer and the Membership Committee Chair.

11. The President shall inform each candidate of the results of the election.

12. The President will announce the election results to the general membership via eblast as
soon as possible, but only after all of the candidates have been notified.
The announcement shall contain the names of all candidates for each position and the
total number of votes received from the membership.

13. Immediately following the announcement by the President, the Elections Officer will
arrange for the election results to be published:
a. On the WMCA website; and
b. In the next WMCA newsletter.

14. Any concerns about the electoral process should be referred to the President for
consideration by the Executive Committee and possible referral to the Membership
Committee the following year.

E. Candidate Packets

1. Pursuant to Article V, Section 4 of the WMCA Bylaws, candidate packets must be received 
by the Elections Officer by December 31 for general elections, and the date determined

55



by the President and Elections Officer for a special election; and must include the four 
following pieces of information:  

a. Declaration of Candidacy: This is a signed, written document containing the
following:

“I declare myself as a candidate for the office of ____________________.  I
declare that I am an active WMCA member in good standing.  I request that my
name be printed on the official ballot for election.  Attached is a letter of support
from my (mayor, city manager, city/county administrator or CEO), with a photo
and candidate statement which I authorize for use in the election process.”

b. Candidate Statement: This statement must be no more than 200 words in length,
including the candidate’s name, title, place of employment and a statement of
why election to office is sought and must be submitted with the Candidate Packet. 
All words of more than one letter, all groups of numbers, and abbreviations or
acronyms will be counted as one word.

c. Photo: A (2” x 2”) black and white or color digital photo of the candidate must be
submitted with the Candidate Packet.  Photos will be forwarded to the Elections
Officer for use in the electronic voting mechanism and to the President-Elect to
forward to the Board member responsible for the April edition of the Executive
Committee Monthly Report to introduce the new Executive Committee.

d. Letter of Support: A letter addressed to WMCA and signed by the candidate’s
mayor, city manager, city/county administrator or CEO supporting the candidacy,
and the candidate’s increased involvement in WMCA, must be submitted with the 
Candidate Packet.

2. The candidate packet may be submitted to the Elections Officer electronically or by hard
copy.

F. Election Timeline

Action General Election Special Election 
Call for Candidates – publication in the 
WMCA Newsletter 

October, November, 
December editions 

Ensuing edition 

Candidate Packet Deadline December 31st A date determined prior 
to election opening date 

Slate of Candidates to Executive 
Committee (via Membership 
Committee Chair) 

Emailed after Call for Candidates closure date 

Webmaster posts Candidate 
Statements and Photos to WMCA 
Website 

After Executive Committee notified 

56



Election Officer Confirms Eligible 
Voters 

Active Members in Good Standing as of the date of 
the election 

Elections Officer Prepares Electronic 
Voting Software 

Prior to the opening of the election 

Elections Open Friday before the first 
business day in 
February 

Date agreed upon by 
Executive Committee 

Elections Close 4pm - third Friday in 
February 

4 pm at the conclusion of 
three weeks from the 
election opening date 

Elections Officer Tallies the Votes The next business day  following the close of 
election 

Elections Auditor reviews and reports 
on election results to Executive 
Committee, Elections Officer and 
Membership Committee Chair 

After results are received from Elections Officer 

President announces results Via email as soon as results are available 
Election Officer arranges to publish 
results in the WMCA Newsletter and 
WMCA website 

Ensuing edition following Presidential 
announcement 

Revised: 6/2002, 6/2004, 10/2006, 12/2010, 3/2012, 10/2015 

57



ARTICLE V - ELECTIONS TO AND NOMINATIONS FOR OFFICE 

Section 1. Elections Officer and Elections Auditor. Each year the Membership Committee Chair shall 
select, from among the committee members, an Elections Officer. The Elections Officer shall be 
designated a co-chair of the Membership Committee. Additionally, each year the Audit Committee Chair 
shall select, from the committee members, an Elections Auditor. The Elections Auditor shall be designated 
a co-chair of the Audit Committee. The Elections Auditor shall not be a member of the Membership 
Committee. The Elections Auditor will assist the Elections Officer as needed and provide an independent 
review of all aspects of the Elections process.  

Section 2. Call for Candidates: In the fall, the Elections Officer shall circulate to the membership a call for 
candidates to fill any upcoming vacant positions for Board Member or Officer in the fall or as needed. 
After review by the Elections Auditor, a list of all individuals who apply for a vacant Board or Officer 
Position shall be submitted to the Executive Committee by the Elections Officer at the January Executive 
Committee meeting.  

Section 3. Ad hoc Nominations Committee: In the event that there are open positions for election in 
which no candidates have filed, the President shall appoint an ad hoc Nominations Committee for the 
purpose of obtaining interested and eligible candidates for the open positions. Candidates identified by 
this method shall meet the requirements for candidacy as set forth in the Elections Procedures.  

Section 4. Acceptance of Candidates: Each person declaring candidacy shall be an active member in good 
standing and shall present the Elections Officer with a Candidate Packet which includes: a Declaration of 
Candidacy, a candidate statement, a photo, and a letter of support from the candidate’s mayor, city 
manager or city/county administrator, or CEO by the published deadline. If the submitted Candidate 
Packet is not complete or the candidate is not an active member in good standing, the candidate’s name 
shall not be included in the list of proposed candidates and shall not be placed on the election ballot. 

Section 5. Election of WMCA Officers and Board Members: 

A. WMCA elections shall be administered in such a manner as to ensure openness, fairness, and to
encourage the broadest possible participation by active members.

B. The Elections Officer shall administer the election, in accordance with the Elections Procedures as
outlined in the Membership Committee Description, a copy of which is on file with the WMCA Secretary.
The Audit Committee Chair and Elections Auditor will provide an independent review of the process and
results of the election and provide a written summary for the next Executive Committee meeting.

C. Any write-in candidate elected by the membership-at-large as a write-in on the ballot shall present the
Elections Officer with a letter of support from the candidate’s mayor, city manager, city/county
administrator or CEO within two weeks following the certification of the election results. If such a letter
is not provided as required, the board or officer position shall be declared vacant by the Elections Officer
and filled pursuant to Article IV, Section 6.

D. After written review and approval by the Elections Auditor, the Elections Officer shall arrange for the
election results to be published on the WMCA website or another WMCA general publication distributed
or accessible to all members.

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



RROLL CALL – WMCA Executive Committee E-Mail Votes 
For Ratification at Quarterly Meeting 

Date: ___________________________________________ 

Name  Made 
Motion  

Second 
Motion  

Aye  Nay  

President Debbie Jermann  

President Elect Susan Duncan  

Vice PPresident Shawn Campbell 

Secretary Debby Barham  

Treasurer Gina Anderson  

Immediate Past President Paul Swisher  

Board Member Donald Ross  

Board Member Lisa Neissl  

Board Member Liz Adkisson  

Board Member Deb Estrada  

Board  Member Terri Wright  

Board Member Melody Valiant  

Action: 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

06/01/2020

Motion: To extend receipt of the WMCA Annual dues through June 30, 2020 without charging a
late fee.

✔

✔

✔

✔ ✔

✔

✔ ✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

✔

69


	Agenda
	Minutes - March 20, 2020
	Treasurer's Report
	Amazon Smiles Donation
	World Points
	Audit Committee Job Description Amendment
	Audit Committee Quarterly Report
	Bylaws Committee Quarterly Report
	Conference Planning Committee Quarterly Report
	Education Committee Quarterly Report
	Fundraising Committee Quarterly Report
	Historical Committee Quarterly Report
	Legislative Committee Quarterly Report
	Membership Committee Quarterly Report
	Scholarship Committee Quarterly Report
	E-Mail Ratifications



